Village of Cuba
Regular Council Meeting
Wednesday, July 9, 2025 6:00 p.m.
Municipal Court Complex
Call to Order
Meeting was called to order at 6:02 p.m.
Pledge of Allegiance
Pledge was recited

Roll Call

Mayor Herrera asked Mrs. Martinez to call roll.

Mayor Herrera present
Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez present
Council Member Salazar absent

Council Member Sandoval present
Council Member Olivas present

Approval of Agenda

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
There was no discussion. Mayor Herrera asked for a roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.

Discussion, Consideration and Action of the minutes for the Regular Meeting held on
May 28, 2025

Council Member Olivas said she didn’t get the minutes. Mrs. Martinez said she has the packet
for the planning and zoning meeting and to check her box. Council Member Olivas said she
picked up a packet on Friday and thought it was the right one. Mrs. Martinez apologized for not
having the packets out on time. Mayor Herrera asked if there were any questions. There were
none.



Discussion, Consideration and Action of the minutes for the Community Meeting on June
24, 2025

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
Mayor Herrera asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. Mayor Herrera
asked for a roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.

Discussion, Consideration and Action of the monthly warrants for the Village of Cuba for
the month of June 2025

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
Mayor Herrera asked if there was any discussion. Council Member Sandoval asked about the
first page of the General fund where it has P/R Buildings and Structures in the amount of
$47,547.50. Mrs. Martinez said that was work done at the park. Mayor Herrera said it was the
money owed for the installation of the building. Council Member Sandoval asked about pages
17 - 29. Mrs. Martinez said it was cut off and apologized for that. He then asked about page 1
of Recreation to S & S for $526.97 for exercise equipment. He said he’s assuming that is
before the Eichwald Center was shut down. Mrs. Martinez said that came in on June 9th. Mrs.
Salaz said it was for equipment that was on backorder. He then asked about a $25.00 payment
for Cuba Laundromat. Mrs. Salaz said they washed the flags. He then asked about a rental fee
to Tom Montoya. Mayor Herrera said that was the return of his rental fee because the center
would not be open for use. Mayor Herrera asked if there was any other discussion. Mayor Pro
Tem Dominguez asked who Olivia Linville is. He was told she is one of the walking champions
who gets people out to walk. Mayor Herrera said she gets paid with money from the grant.
Mayor Pro Tem said he thought maybe she was an employee. Mayor Herrera said no. Mayor
Herrera asked for a roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.



Discussion, Consideration and Action of the monthly warrants for the Cuba Housing
Authority for the month of June 2025

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
Mayor Herrera asked if there was any discussion. There was none. Mayor Herrera asked for a
roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.

Discussion, Consideration and Action - Amendment to Resolution Number VOC-SAP 21-
F2372-STB to reassign Authorized Officer/Official Representative

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
Mayor Herrera asked if there was any discussion. Council Member Olivas asked what this is
about. Mrs. Martinez said it is for a $164,000.00 grant that expires at the end of the year. She
said they put in a disbursement request and Mayor Velarde and Vandora were the only ones
authorized to sign off on it so they need to give permission for her and Mayor Herrera to sign off
on it so they get the money. She said they did include on the resolution “or successor” they
won't have to do this again. Mayor Herrera asked if there was any other discussion. There was
none. Mayor Herrera asked for a roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.

Discussion, Consideration and Action - on a Resolution to adopt the Fiscal Year 2027-
2031 INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ICIP) for the Village of Cuba

Council Member Olivas made the motion. Council Member Sandoval seconds the motion.
Council Member Olivas asked if “infrastructure” would be sidewalks or buildings. Mayor Herrera
said the ICIP is where they ask the state for any type of funding. Mayor Herrera asked if there
was any other discussion. There was none. Mayor Herrera asked for a roll call vote.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.



Review of the Municipal Court report for the month of May 2025
Report reviewed. No discussion.
Brief update for the Cuba Volunteer Fire Department addressed by Mrs. Linda Morales

Mayor Herrera said Mrs. Morales called and informed him she would not be at the meeting but
did ask he pass on that the grant for the new fire hydrants was awarded this time after being
kicked back the first time. Mr. AJ Pacheco said it is not committed just of yet and it should be
awarded but they should know by next month. Council Member Olivas asked how many this is
for. Mayor Herrera said he is not exactly sure the amount, he said like $200,000.00. Council
Member Olivas asked how many fire extinguishers. Mayor Herrera said it is for fire hydrants,
not extinguishers, and it is for the ones that are not working.

Brief update addressed by Ms. Jeanette Linville of StillWaters Consulting for the month
of June 2025

Ms. Linville said they have seen her report and asked if they had any questions. She said most
of these projects are going on the 2 year mark. Recently she is working on a CDBG grant for
repair and or replacement of the Eichwald Center. She said the mold and asbestos testing have
been done and the results are pending. She said the asbestos results will not be released until
they get paid. Council Member Olivas asked if that is the reason it is closed. Ms. Linville said
the NM State Fire Marshall came in and recommended they close. She said there was also a
structural engineer from Wilson and Company that came in and they did a report on the
structural integrity of the building and he recommended the molid and asbestos testing. She
said the results of the mold are not as crucial as the asbestos and if there is asbestos that will
fundamentally change the grant. She said asbestos remediation is very expensive. She said
the asbestos will determine what can be done depending on what is chosen to be done. She
said they will set up another community meeting at which point the council can decide what they
intend on doing.. At the first meeting it was indicated all are in favor of a complete replacement
so they will have to see a timeframe and that will also be a muitifunder project because she
doesn’t think CDBG will fund the entire project. She said they will put together a funding
strategy for the building which she will work with Mid Region Council of Governments and also a
funding team at DFA to put something together and this way they have more eyes on the
project. Mayor Herrera said if the extent of the building is not that severe they will go after the
repair and at least have that building open as soon as possible then maybe go after funding to
replace if that is something that is needed. Ms. Linville said yes and the asbestos is key.

Mayor Herrera asked Ms. Linville whine ICIP is due. She said Friday and now they have the
resolution and she can enter all the data which she is entering for 2 projects in the ICIP. Mayor
Herrera asked her to forward the information to Ms. Beam so she can update it on the website
to show what money they are going after and the projects they want. Ms. Linville said she can
print out a summary of the ICIP projects which can be uploaded. Council Member Sandoval
asked if private funding would affect the money received on the grant side. He said he has a few



big companies in mind. Ms. Linville said it would help tremendously because when they build a
budget for a grant and if it can be shown there is an amount from another agency that actuaily
strengthens the application. Mayor Herrera said it opens the door for match grants depending
on the amount the public entity has put into the project. Ms. Linville said this year they don't
have a limit on the amount they can ask for and they are waiving the 25% match for small
communities. She said that is why she’s trying to get this grant in. Ms. Linville was asked with
the private grant if it would be better for the Mayor and Council to request funding or a council
member alone. Ms. Linville said it doesn’t matter. Mayor Herrera asked if most of the grants
are at 25%. Ms. Linville said yes and this year the 25% match is waived so that is why she’s
going after it now. She said she will apply for the 25% match grant for La Loma tank because
they got the paperwork signed and DFA has a little sister grant to go with the match funding,
and if you have match funding and apply for the project implantation grant, you'll get it. She
said it is for 5% of the cost of the total project which means that money will go for the Village to
pay for a project manager, so if they get that grant her services can be paid for 2 years.

Public Comment (2-minute limit)

Mr. Tommy Salazar asked if the Village has had a discussion about the prairie dog problem.
Mayor Herrera said they only thing they discussed, which will be on the next agenda, is waiving
the shooting of BB guns and air pistols in the Village limits. Mr. Rod Herrera told Mr. Salazar if
he goes to the Soil Conservation, they rent out a machine to blow up the holes. He said to talk
to Chris Lucero, and it is the same thing they use at the park. Mr. Salazar asked what they
charge for that. Mr. Herrera said he would have to talk with Mr. Lucero. He said at one time he
said it was free but he could be wrong. Mayor Herrera said they also have other things
depending on which route they want to take. Mr. Herrera said for the pellets they have to go to
training and the other is $500.00 for 100 cartridges. He said the best bet would be to talk with
Mr. Lucero.

Mr. AJ Pacheco said first he would like to invite the Mayor, council and the community to the
ribbon cutting at the new provider housing at the Cuba Health Center on Friday, July 25th at 2
pm., the congresswoman will be here to cut the ribbon and tour the new facility. He said
because of that, the Health Center is fully staffed for the first time in a decade. Second, the
CPF for the fire hydrants, to remember the same CPF that funded the PMS Clinic and the fire
hydrants is also available through both the senate offices and they don’t have a dollar amount.
He said the Village can also try for funding through Heinrick and Lujan’s offices as well for
additional funding. He said Deb Holland will be present for the Mud Bogs and she wants to
tour the Village and learn more about their needs since she is running for Governor. Last, he
wants to send kudos Austin and Miguel for getting the water taken care of. Mayor Herrera said
he would let them know.

Mrs. McCoy asked for votes for JMEC on July 22nd.

Mr. Velarde asked about the item tabled for this meeting on the initiation of the License Plate
reader to be submitted by Chief Coleman which was postponed until the next meeting, which



this is the next meeting and it's not being discussed. Mayor Herrera said they moved it to the
23rd. Mr. Velarde asked if he will be attending on a regular basis to address things and asked if
that was brought up to him because that has been mentioned a few times. Mayor Herrera said
he will attend when he feels the council meetings are not going to get out of hand. Mayor
Herrera told Mr. Velarde if there are specific items he would like to discuss, he can also get on
the agenda and address them directly. Mr. Velarde said there is a lot of input from various parts
of the community and he thought he was one of them being Chief of Police and it is expected for
him to be there to give updates like the Fire Department does on a regular basis. He said he
has not been at a meeting for 2 % years. Mayor Herrera said he would have to make it a
mandatory thing. Mr. Velarde told Mayor Herrera he said he was going to do that. Mayor
Herrera said he guesses he can make it mandatory and see if he shows up. Mr. Velarde said it
would be nice to have that part of the community be there to discuss things even when he’s on
the agenda. Mayor Herrera said his items are on the agenda. Council Member Olivas said it
would be nice if he was there once in a while. Ms. Melissa Roybal said she feels the same.

She had a situation where she was going through town and a truck was going about 60 and had
to slam his brakes to avoid hitting her from behind then had to go on 2 wheels to get into the
other lane and sped up again. She said she saw a Village Officer sitting at the car wash facing
550 right by the burb and she pulled in and asked him if he saw him. She said the officer told
her he had to do some other things and they’re probably already out of his jurisdiction by now.
She said these are things she would love to address. Mayor Herrera said what he can do is
post his office hours because he has an open door policy and they can go discuss things with
him. Ms. Roybal said that is a good suggestion but she thinks he should be at the meetings to
see what’s going on in the community and he can see what their concerns are. Ms. Linville
suggested that if the Village is going to make it mandatory for Chief Coleman to attend and
present, then every department head should show up to the council meetings. Ms. Linville said
it is now just Chief Coleman that does not attend the meetings. Mayor Herrera asked what are
the consequences for not going. Ms. Linville said that would be up to them. Mrs. Martinez said
it does state in the policies it is mandatory for department heads to attend the meetings.

Ms. Beam discussed an email regarding a survey that would be conducted by the Northcentral
New Mexico Economic Development Department who is working on a Regional Economic
Development Strategy and they want to include Cuba. She said they know the Village goes to
MRCOG often that is the primary district for economic development but they did solicit input
from Cuba to implement the North Central New Mexico planning. Ms. Beam said she did
participate in the survey and is not sure if they are still collecting responses but they did give
permission for them to give the questions out to the community on an open ended basis so if the
Village can conduct this survey to keep the input coming into the Village it will be helpful for any
economic development decisions they may have from the community. She said she is
requesting permission for the Village to run the survey that mirrors the questions that North
Central is using to formulate their regional strategy. She said she will put it online and post it
and publish it and allow people to respond. Mayor Herrera said he thinks it is a good idea. She
said she will share any reporting as it comes in. Mayor Herrera said Ms. Rumsfeld from tourism
has said she will be at one of the meetings. Ms. Beam said also the tourism alliance for
Sandoval County does provide their budget summary for their activities and their meeting



agendas and if they are considering joining their alliance and she does know on the current
agenda it has something of the Sandoval County Fair which does affect Cuba and that may be a
good thing for them to have if they don’t receive it directly they can ask they provide that.

Council Member Sandoval asked if there is a cut off date to get on the agenda. Mrs. Martinez
said by the 10th of the month. Council Member Sandoval asked if they can post it on the
website. Ms. Beam said there is a calendar on the website with a standing date of the Friday
before the meeting. She asked if it should be 2 Friday’s before the meeting. She asked they
look at the calendar and make adjustments and she thinks it is in the Open Meetings Act which
is also posted. She said if someone is interested in the Open Meetings Act and the posting of
the agenda they are available on the website. Council Member Sandoval said that is to make
people aware so if they are not on the agenda.

Mayor Herrera asked if there was any other public comment. Mr. Velarde asked if there is any
way they can Zoom the meetings. Mayor Herrera said they have discussed it and they need to
update their recording devices. He said they have had Zoom meetings before. Mr. Pacheco
said Jemez Springs uses an iPad and a microphone set. He said that may be a simple solution.
Ms. Beam said the Outlook software the Village uses can also be used. Mrs. Martinez said it
has been used. Mayor Herrera asked if they will broadcast on their website. Ms. Beam said
there are many ways of doing it and she is happy to help. Mayor Herrera said yes for her to
look into it.

Mayor Herrera asked if there was any other discussion. Council Member Sandoval said he has
a couple more things.

Council Member Sandoval said he hears them with the situation with Chief Coleman and he
agrees that if they make it mandatory for him it has to be for all or at least have some type of
representation, someone to answer for that department but then too, Council Members need to
show up to the meetings and he wants to point out this is the first meeting in 7 that Council
Member Olivas has been there. He said if it is going to be mandatory for department heads, the
Council Members should also be held to that same standard. Secondly, with events, it is not
just with the Village Police. He said he was almost in a head on and there was a County police
who saw the whole thing and all he did was wave at him. He said it is not just the Village PD.
Mr. Velarde said this would be the best time to have some representation from the Police
Department. Ms. Roybal said if there is a police officer present and someone gets hurt, that will
be a major lawsuit. She said she is not just making noise, it is her concern for the community.
Mayor Herrera asked if no one responded when she called 911. She said she didn’t call 911
because there was a police officer right there. Mayor Herrera said at least it is documented.
Council Member Sandoval said they are trying to move forward. Ms. Roybal said they need
everybody involved and she thinks the police need to be there to respond to those things.
Council Member Sandoval said if he asks the council to be present, he can not be present. He
said he understands things happen but he expects to be held to the same standard that he
holds everyone else to.



Council Member Sandoval said on a positive note, for the 4th they had their light drone firework
show and between 2 families they had almost $2,000.00 of fireworks which was a 20 minute
show, no injuries, no fires, kudos to the maintenance crew who got out there and drug the field
and parking area and cleared the weeds for nothing to catch fire. He said the Fire Department
was out there with their equipment, Cuba PD was out there and it was a good community event.
He said it wasn't a huge crowd but the kids loved it.

Mayor Herrera said the next council meeting is going to be moved up to Wednesday the 23rd
which is a week earlier because they have time sensitive items they need to take care of.

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez asked if they still have sand bags to distribute since this is flood
season. Mr. Herrera said they do have some and all they need to do is ask them for some. He
said there is sand by the baseball field and by the library for them to be filled. Mayor Herrera
asked Ms. Beam to put that on the website. Mr. Rod Herrera said they can assist with filling the
bags if they are elderly or need help. Ms. Beam said she will put that on the website. Mayor
Herrera asked Ms. Beam to include that if they are prone to flooding, not to wait until it starts to
rain, to get some right away. She said ok.

Mayor Herrera said they would be going into executive session and he would like for all to leave
the courtroom so it is easier for Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez. He said they are all welcome to
stay until after they are done with the executive session but all he will do after is adjourn the
meeting.

Mrs. Martinez said they need to take a vote to go into Executive Session and the reasons to be
discussed need to be indicated and she will record the time. When they are done she will
indicate no action was taken.

6:53 entered into executive session. Executive Session closed pursuant the Open
Meetings Act NMSA 1978 & 10-15-1(H)(2), (7) to discuss: Limited Personnel Matters,

Limited Legal Matters, Discussion of the Eichwald Center Building, no action to be taken

Roli call vote to enter into executive session:

Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes
Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes

Motion carries.

Mayor Herrera adjourned executive session at 8:12 p.m. and no action was taken in executive
session. Mayor Herrera asked for a roll call vote.



Mayor Pro Tem Dominguez yes

Council Member Sandoval yes
Council Member Olivas yes
Announcements

a. Next Regular Council Meeting - Date: Wednesday, July 30, 2025
Adjournment

Meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m.



